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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited Report
on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality
Hospital Private Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (*Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its
profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
("SAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"”) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

e« The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s report, but does not include the financial
statements, and our auditor’s report thereon.

e Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

» If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the

date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that if there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due -
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.
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¢« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for not
complying with the requirement of audit trail as stated in (i)(vi) below.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith, are as stated in paragraph (b) above.
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9)

h)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by

the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements - Refer Note 32 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the note 44 (f) to the financial statements, no funds
(which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the note 44 (g) to the financial statements, no funds
(which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.
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V. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the year ended 31
March 2025 which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility except
in respect of accounting software used for maintenance of point of sales records
wherein the audit trail was not enabled throughout the year at database level.
Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of
the audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting softwares for
the period for which the audit trail feature was operating.

Additionally audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.0080725)

>

Ankit\Daga

( ner)

(Membership No. 512486)
(UDIN: 25512486BMOZPR4570)

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 15 May 2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Dr. Ramesh
Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited (the “Company”) as at 31 March 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the criteria for internal financial control with
reference to financial statements established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.008072S)

D

Ankit Daga

rtner)

(Membership No. 512486)
(UDIN: 25512486BMOZPR4570)

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 15 May 2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

(M (a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(i) (@

(b)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital
work-in-progress and relevant details of right of use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment (except
leasehold improvements), capital work-in-progress, and right-of-use assets so as
to cover all the items in a phased manner over a period of 2 years, which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipment, capital
work-in-progress, and right-of-use assets were due for verification during the year
and were physically verified by the management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the company is the lessee and lease agreements are duly executed
in favour of the Company) and hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including
Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31 March 2025, for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class
of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when
compared with books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 5 crores, in aggregate, during the
year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
As per the sanction letter, the Company is not required to file quarterly returns or
statements with the banks or financial institution.

(iii) The Company has made investments in and granted unsecured loans to companies or
other party during the year, in respect of which:

a) The Company has provided unsecured loans during the year and details of which are

as below:

Page 8 of 12



Deloitte

Haskins & Sells

(iv)

(v)

b)

)

d)

f)

Particulars Loans
(INR Lakhs)

A. Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year

- Subsidiary 173.39

- Others 70.89
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect

of above cases:
- Subsidiary 690.24
- Others 284.68

The Company has not provided any security or advances in the nature of loans or
stood guarantee during the year.

The investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the above-
mentioned loans during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to
the Company'’s interest.

In respect of loan granted by the Company to its subsidiary that are repayable on
demand, the Company has not demanded such loans during the year. Additionally, in
respect of the other loan granted, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and interest
were not due for the year ended 31 March 2025. Having regard to the fact that the
repayment of principal or payment of interest has not been demanded or not due
for repayment by the Company, in our opinion the repayments of principal and
receipt of interest are regular. (Refer reporting under clause (iii)(f) below).

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no
overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

None of the loans granted by the Company have fallen due during the year.

The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand details of which are
given below:

Name of the entity All Parties Promoters | Related Parties
(Amount (Amount in (Amountin
in Lakhs) Lakhs) Lakhs)

Aggregate of loans e

"~ Repayabie on demand (A) 690.24 - 690.24

- Agreement does not specify - - -

any terms or period of

repayment (B)

Total of (A+B) _690.24 . ~690.24

Percentage of loans to the 70.80% - 70.80%

total loans
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(vi)

(vii)

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of services rendered. We have broadly
reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of
the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained
by the Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally been regularly deposited by
it with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us by the management, there were
no dues payable in respect of Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Excise, and Value Added
Tax during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax,
Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2025, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on 31 March 2025 on account of disputes are given below:

(viii)

(ix)

Name of | Nature Forum Period to which Amount Amount
Statue | of dues where the amount involved | remaining
dispute is relates (INR unpaid
pending (financial year) Lakhs) (INR
Lakhs)

Andhra Value Deputy 2013-14 to 2015- | 16.99 8.50

Pradesh Added Commissioner | 16

Value Tax (€

Added Tax

Act and

rules 2005

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the year.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which
the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the funds

raised on short-term basis have, on prima facie, not been used for long-term
purposes by the Company.
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not taken any fund from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries.

(F) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries. The Company does not have any joint ventures or associate
companies.

(a) The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during

the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on
the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year and upto the date of this report.

(o) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year and upto the date of this report.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the
year and covering the period upto 31 March 2025 and the final of the internal audit
reports issued after the balance sheet date covering the period 1 April 2024 to 31
March 2025 for the period under audit.

In our opinion, during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with any of its directors or directors of its holding company, subsidiary companies or persons
connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013
are not applicable to the Company.

(@) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) The Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the group
and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.
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(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix)

(xx)

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund
specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the
provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

rtner

(Membership No. 512486)
UDIN: 25512486BMOZPR4570

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 15 May 2025

Page 12 of 12



Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
CIN: U73100AP1995PTC020491

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025

All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4.1 8,465.62 8,636.56
Right-of-use assets 34 2,456.17 2,282.75
Capital work-in-progress 4.2 3.78 41.75
Other intangible assets 5 26.58 37.50
Financial assets
Investments 6 9,166.12 8,710.06
Other financial assets 12 386.34 423.99
Income tax assets (net) 31 487.46 623.67
Deferred tax assets (net) 31 480.57 760.10
Other non-current assets 13 134.81 147.28
Total non-current assets 21,607.45 21,663.66

Current assets

Inventories 7 508.47 504.06
Financial assets
Investments 6 8.08 7.55
Trade receivables 8 2,618.11 1,849.66
Cash and cash equivalents 9 67.15 4335
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 10 21.00 -
Loans 11 690.24 476.04
Other financial assets 12 894.02 640.45
Other current assets 13 247.79 301.08
Total current assets 5,054.86 3.822.19
Total assets 26.662.31 25,485.85

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Equity share capilal 14 1,078.58 1,078.58
Other equity 15 13,536.19 12.329.51
Total equity 14,614.77 13,408.09
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 16 1,809.24 1,935.77
Lease liabilities 34 3,821.25 3,673.75
Other Financial liabilities 18 37.00 37.00
Provisions 19 756.65 614.92
Total non-current liabilities 6,424.14 6,261.44

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 16 1,174.18 1,439.15

Lease liabilities 34 167.83 146.50
Trade payables 17

- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 264.41 111.28

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 2,347.13 2,873.61

Other financial liabilities 18 1,138.04 778.12

Provisions 19 - 48.89

Other current liabilities 20 531.81 418.77

Total current liabilities 5.623.40 5,816.32

Total equity and liabilities 26,662.31 25,485.85

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Li d
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/ e DU\S?‘F(E_,\_)

Anki ; r. P. Ramesh Babu M.S. Rama Mohan Rao
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Date : 15 May 2025 Date : 15 May 2025

Bengaluru
Date : 15 May 2025
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Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited

CIN: U73100AP1995PTC020491

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars S 31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 21 25,800.33 23,770.87
Other income 22 260.13 215.19
Total income 26,060.46 23,986.06
Expenses
Purchases of medicines and medical consumables 23 5,159.97 5,126.28
Changes in inventories 24 (4.41) (11.37)
Professional fee to consultant doctors 25 6,095.46 5,714.39
Laboratory outsourcing charges 26 235.56 148.75
Employee benefits expense 27 7,145.11 6,883.00
Finance costs 28 619.26 656.34
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 29 1,442.14 1,373.18
Other expenses 30 3,515.08 3,104.93
Total expenses 24,208.17 22,995.50
Profit before tax 1,852.29 990.56
Tax expense/ (benefit) 31
Current tax 271.27 123.83
Current tax for earlier years (11.52) (20.10)
Deferred tax 310.52 116.49
Total tax expense 570.27 220.22
Profit for the year 1,282.02 770.34
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (106.29) (36.57)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 30.95 10.17
Total other comprehensive income (75.34) (26.40)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1.206.68 743.94
Earnings per share (equity share of face value of INR 10 each) 33
Basic 11.89 7.14
Diluted 11.89 7.14

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 0080728

O

Anki a

Partner

Membership No.: 512486
Bengaluru

Date : 15 May 2025
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Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited

Dr. P. W M.S. Rama Mgan Rao

Managing Director Chairman and Director
DIN: (11879436 DIN: 02356742

Vijayawada Vijayawada
Dale : 15 May 2025 Date : 15 May 2025
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Suggula Hari Krishna Pavitra Pramod Hunswadkar
Chief Financial Qfficer Company Secretary
Vijayawada Membership No.: A73646

Date : 15 Mav 2025 Vijayawada

Date : 15 May 2025



Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited

CIN: U73100AP1995PTC020491

Statement of Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit for the year

Adjustments for non cash and non operating items:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Finance costs

Allowances for credit losses on financial assets

Profil on sale of investment (net)

Share of profit in limited liability partnership

Interest income under the effective interest method
(Profit)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)
Impact of lease modification

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
Working capital adjustments

Changes in inventories

Changes in trade receivables

Changes in other financial assets

Changes in other assets

Changes in trade payables

Changes in other financial liabilities

Changes in provisions

Changes in other liabilities

Cash generalted from operating activities

Taxes paid, net of refund received

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)
Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Redemption of /(lnvestment in) subsidiaries (net)
(Investments in)/proceeds from sale of mutual funds (net)
Movement in other bank balances and restricted deposits
Loan to subsidiary and associate (net of loan repayment)
Share of profit in limited liability partnership

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities

Paymnent of lease liabilities

Finance cost paid

Long term secured loan availed

Long term secured loan repaid

Cunrent borrowings (repaid)/availed, net

Borrowing availed from subsidiary

Net cash used in financing activitics (C)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer Note 9)

Components of cagh and cash equivalents

1,852.29 990.56
1,442,14 1,373.18
619.26 656.34
(11441 (212.00)
(0.11) (8.43)
(6.42) (69.23)
(85.04) (81.38)
0.17 (0.54)
(14.64) -
3,693.24 2,648.50
(4.41) (11.37)
(654.04) (14.61)
(250.70) (564.73)
71.24 (38.23)
(373.35) (220.25)
101,42 164.23
(13.45) 62.28
113.04 227.30
2,682.99 2,253.12
(123.56) (221.09)
2,559.43 2,032.03
(768.69) (1,153.44)
1.74 0.54
(456.,06) (504,99)
(0.42) 825.48
11.00 (10.00)
(168,92) >
642 69.23
29,52 71.45
(1,345.41) (701.73)
(520.96) (457.05)
(288.97) (315.56)
725.00 -
(853.20) (931.29)
(328.74) 306.04
76.65 -
(1,190.22) (1,397.86)
23.80 (67.56)
43.35 11091
67.15 43.33

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 Alareh 2024)

Cash on hand 33.23 3425
Balances with banks - in current accounts 23,92 9.10
Balances with banks -Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 10.00 -

Total 67.15 43.35




Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
CIN: U73100AP1995PTC020491

Statement of Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended 31 March 2025

Particulars As ut Movement during the year As at
01 April 2024 Cash inflows  Cash outflows  Additions/ Finance costs 31 March 2025
Modifications
Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 3,392.34 801.65 (1,470.91) - 274.47 2,997.56
Lease liabilities 3.820.25 - (520.96) 345.00 344.79 3.989.08
Total 7,212.59 801.65 (1,991.87) 345.00 619.26 6.986.63
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended 31 March 2024
Particulars As at Movement during the year As at
01 April 2023 Cash inflows  Cash outflows  Additions/ Finance costs 31 March 2024
Modifications
Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 4,023.11 306.04 (1,246.85) - 310.04 3,392.34
Lease liabilities 3.892.18 - (457.05) 38.82 346.30 3,820.25
Total 7.915.29 306.04 (1,703.90) 38.82 656.34 7,212.59
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited

Firgyre isl}i\ml number: 0080728

AnkigDhga Dr. P. Ramesh Babu
Partner Managing Director
Membership No.: 512486 DIN: 01879436
Bengaluru - z Vijayawada

Date : 15 May 2025 P\S Kiy S Date : 15 May 2025
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Siggula Hari Krishna
Chief Financial Officer
Vijayawada
Date : 15 May 2025
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Pavitra Pramod Hunswadkar

Company Secretary
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Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

[

Company overview

Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited (“the Company”) is a company domiciled in India, with its registered office at Vijayawada,
Andhra Pradesh. The Company is engaged in the business of rendering medical and healthcare services, retail pharmacies, participating in clinical studies
and conducting training programs and services primarily in Vijayawada and Guntur. Aster DM Healthcare Limited is the Holding Company.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and the relevant amended rules prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act’), read with relevant
rules issued thereunder.

Pursuant to Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Amended Rules), the Company has not presented consolidated financial statements as its
Parent Company (Aster DM Healthcare Limited) is incorporated in India and presenting the consolidated financial statements as required by the Companies
Act, 2013,

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 15 May 2025
Details of the Company’s material accounting policies are included in Note 3

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in [ndian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts are presented in Indian
Rupees in lakhs and are rounded off to two decimals, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for the following material items that have been

measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:

i. Certain financial assets and liabilities; and
ii. Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability.

. qd 1

Use of esti and judg

In preparing these financial statements, the Management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed by the Management on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Information about judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment during the year
ended 31 March 2025 is included in the following notes:
-Note 3.1, 3.2, 4 and 5 - Measurement of useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;

- Note 6 — Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and associates;
-Note 3.11 and 31 - Recognition of deferred tax asset: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used;

- Note 3.6 and 32 - Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
Tesources;

- Note 3.9 and 34 - Leases;
- Note 3.5, 19 and 36 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;
- Note 3.4, 8, 11 and 39 - Impairment of financial assets;

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and

liabilities. The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values,
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e.,

derived from prices); and
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair
value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
- Financial instruments and
- Fair value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.




Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

E.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind As
116 — Leases, relating to sale and lease back transactions, applicable from April 1, 2024. The Company has assessed that there is no significant impact on its
financial statements.

On May 9, 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. These amendments aim to provide clearer
guidance on assessing currency exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025. The Company is currently assessing the probable impact of these amendments on its financial
statements.

Material accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components)
of property, plant and equipment

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, outstanding at each balance sheet date are shown under other non-current assets,
The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for its intended use at each balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

ii. Subsequent expenditure and derecognition
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment are provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets estimated by the Management.
Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period is proportionately charged. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease term or useful lives
of assets, whichever is lower. The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative years are as follows:

Class of assets Useful life (in years)
Office equipment 5

Medical equipment* 10-13

Motor vehicles * 3-10
Computer equipment 3

Servers and networks 6

Furniture and fixtures * 5-10
Electrical equipment 10

* For the above-mentioned classes of assets, the Company believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the useful lives of these assets based on
internal assessment and supported by technical advice, where necessary, which is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule I1 of

the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

iv. Capital work-in-progress

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date are recognized as capital advance and the cost
of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress,

Commencement of Depreciation related to property, plant and equipment classified as Capital work in progress (CWIP) involves determining when the assets
are available for their intended use. The criteria the Company uses to determine whether CWIP are available for their intended use involves subjective
judgments and assumptions about the conditions necessary for the assets to be capable of operating in the intended manner.

CHARTERED

AGCOUNTANT




Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

3.2

33

3.4

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets are amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, commencing from the date the asset is available
to the Company for its use and is included in depreciation and amortisation expenses in statement of profit and loss. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
The estimated useful life of software is 4 years.

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and
other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain
the expected future cash flows from the asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories comprises purchase price, and other cost incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. The Company uses the weighted average method to determine the cost of inventory consisting of

medicines and medical consumables.

Net realisable value is the estimated seiling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of
cost and net realisable values is made on an item-by-item basis.

Impairment

i. Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL") on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred

The Company always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on trade receivables
are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtors and an analysis of the debtors’ current financial position,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate, and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed
to credit risk.

Measurement of expected credit losses
Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses, Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the
difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet:
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets

Write-off’
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay

the amounts subject to the write off.

ii. Impairment of non- financial assets
The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment, If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset)

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their cartying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount i.e., the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value:
in-use is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss is measured by the amount by which the
carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset.

An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years




Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
Ail amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

3.5

3.6

3.7

Employee benefits

Shori-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits
include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal
or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund scheme.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss in the periods
during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Defined Benefit plans

Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation to provide agreed benefits to the employees.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income (OC1) in the
period in which they occur. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) recognised in other comprehensive income shall not be reclassified to
the statement of profit and loss in a subsequent period. However, the Company transfers those amounts recognised in other comprehensive income within
equity. The Company determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Provisions (other than employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive ebligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash Mows estimated to seitle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the
effect of the time value of money is material).

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable
cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company recognises any impairment
loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Revenue

The Company generates revenue from rendering hospital services (hospital and medical services), revenue from sale of pharmacy, revenue from cateen
services and other operating income. Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("Ind AS 115"), establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods or services in an
amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services, In calculating the variable
considerations, the Company considers the nature and coverage through insurance and other parties, the history of adjustments and rejections, and the
probability of rejections, discounts, rebates, price concessions, or other similar items. The impact of these

considerations is reflected as adjustments to revenue.

Disaggregation of revenue

The Company disaggregates revenue from hospital services (hospital and medical services), revenue of pharmacy, revenue from canleen services,revenue
from consultancy services and other operating income.The company further disaggregates revenue from hospital and medical services based on category of
customers (cash and credit) and based on nature of treatment (In-patient and Out-patient) The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the
nature, amount, timing and certainty of Company’s revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Contract balances
The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for sale of services where invoice is raised as trade receivables, where invoice has not been
raised as unbilled revenue and advance consideration as advance from customers.

Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognises 1 when it transfers control over a
good o service 10 a customer i.c. at the transaction price when each performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when inpatient/outpatients has
actually received the service except for few services where the performance obligation is satisfied over a period of time. The following details provide
information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and
the related revenue recognition policies.

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANT
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3.7

3.8

3.9

Revenue (continued)

(a) Revenue from hospital and medical services

The Company’s revenue from hospital and medical services comprises of income from hospital services.

Revenue from hospital services to patients is recognised as revenue when the related services are rendered unless significant future uncertainties exist.
Revenue is also recognised in relation to the services rendered to the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date to the
extent of the services rendered. Revenue is recognised net of discounts, concessions given to the patients and estimated disallowances for patients covered
under insurance.

Unbilled receivable represents value to the extent of hospital and medical services are rendered to the patients who are undergoing treatment/observation on
the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet date.

(b) Revenue from sale of pharmacy

Revenue from sale of pharmacy within the hospital premises is recognised when the control in the goods are transferred to the customer and no significant
uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods and regarding its collection. The amount of
revenue recognised is net of sales returns, taxes and duties, wherever applicable.

(c) Other operating income
The Company’s revenue from other operating income comprises primarily of revenue from medical courses conducted at the hospital and income from

revenue sharing agreements.

(d) Revenue from consultancy services
The Company's revenue from consultancy services is based on the agreements/arrangements with the customers as the service is performed.

(e) Revenue from canteen services
Revenue from canteen services is recognised at a point in time when control is transferred.

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an
average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date, Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Leases

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that
contains a lease, the payments and other consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for other elements on

the basis of their relative fair values.

i. Company as a lessee
The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract and allocates the

consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of
the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of
right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use
assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.
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3.9

3.9

3.10

n

Leases (continued)

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease, The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
Company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate,
initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-
measurement in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116, Leases, to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less.
The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and the right-of-use asset. The related
payments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line “Other
expenses” in the statement of profit and loss.

Leases

ii. Company as a lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance
lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the
lease.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as teceivables at the amount of the Company’s net investment in the leases. When the
Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. [t assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease
with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which
the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers to allocate the
consideration in the contract.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income or interest expense

(a) Dividend income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the date on which the right to receive payment is established

(b) Interest on deployment of surplus funds is recognized using the time proportionate method, based on the transactional interest rates.

(¢) Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The “effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly

in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in
respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes, It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise
the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is considered probable that there will be a future outflow of
funds to a tax authority. The provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amount expected to become payable. The assessment is based on the
judgement of tax professionals within the Company supported by previous experience in respect of such activities and in certain cases based on specialist
independent tax advice.
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3.11 Income tax (continued)

3.12

3.13

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding tax bases used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised for carry forward of unused tax losses and tax credits to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which such losses and credits can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are

recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. The existence of unused tax losses is
strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset
only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available
against which such deferred tax asset can be realised Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are
recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Borrowings and Borrowings cost

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as current liabitities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. :
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs direetly attributable to acquisition or construction of an
asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until such time as
the asset is substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred

Financial instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated, All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially

recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value, except for trade receivables that do not have a significant financing component which
are measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as either at amortised cost, FVTPL or fair vaiue through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing
financial assets

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

 the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to coliect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irmevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised
cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at investment level because this best reflects the
way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those policies in practice. These include whether Management’s strategy
focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets 1o the duration of
any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the
Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

HARTERED

COUNTANTS
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3.13

3.13

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration
for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as weli as a profit margin

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument,
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non-recourse features).

Iinancial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financiai assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in statement profit and loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Dividends are recognised as income
in statement profit and loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not
reclassified to statement of profit and loss,

Financial instruments

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or
it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss,

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which
the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a
financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new
financial liability with modified terms is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

iv. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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3.14

3.15

3.16

Earnings / (Loss) per share
The basic carnings / (loss) per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been
issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date. In computing dilutive eamnings per share,
only potential equity shares that are dilutive, i.e., which reduces earnings per share or increases loss per share are included. The dilutive potential equity
shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted for share splits/reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Cash-flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals
or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are

segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less which are subject to

insignificant risk of changes in value.

Segment reporting

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108~ establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating
segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Based on the “"management approach” as defined in Ind
AS 108, Operating segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM),
the Managing director of the Company. The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources on overall basis, The Company’s sole
operating segment is therefore ‘Hospital and Medical Services’.

Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of
products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current
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Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality [lospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

6 Investments

Particulars As at As at
31 Marceh 2025 31 March 2024

Non-current investments, unquoted
Investments in equity insiruments of subsidiaries (uf cost)
Sanghamitra Hospitals Private Limited

62,65,300 (31 March 2024: 60,63,511) equity shares of INR 10 eacli 8,856.74 8,400.68
Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP
51% of the total capital amounting to INR 47.75 lakhs 47.75 47.75

(31 March 2024: 51% of the total capital amounting to INR 47.75 lakhs)

Komali Fertility Centre L.LLP

50% of the total capital amounting to INR 40 lakhs 40.00 40,00
(31 March 2024: 50% of the total capital amounting to INR 40 lakhs)

Komali Fertility Centre LLP-Ongole

51% of the total capital amounting to INR 51 lakhs 51.00 51.00
(31 March 2024: 51% of the total capital amounting to INR 51 lakhs)

Adiran IB Healthcare Private Limited

2,999,999 (31 March 2024: 2.999,999) equity sharss of INR 10 each 160.63 160.63
Aasraya HealthCare LLP ;

51% of the total capital amounting, to INR 663 lakhs 10.00 10,00
(31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025 : INR 16 lakhs has been called upon and paid '

Total 0,166.12 8,710.06
Aggregate carrying smouat of unqueted investments ' 916612 8,710.0%

Current investments, quoted
Tivessment in Mutual Funds - Quoted investments (non- trade ai fuir value through profit or luss)
Reliance Equity Hybrid Fund- Segregated Portfolio - | -

Nippon India Over Night Fund 1.73 1.62
[1,260.54 (3] March 2024: 1,260.541 units]

Nippon India Ultra Short Term Daration Fund 6.35 5.88
[145.75 (31 March 2024: 145.75) units]

Total 8.08 7.55
Aggregate carrying amount of quoied investments 8.08 7.55
Agaregate markel value of quoted investments 8.08 755

Aggregate amount of nnpairment in the value of investments

7 Inventories

'AS at As at

Particulars R
31 Marels 2u2 31 March 2024
(Valued at lower of cost und net realisulile valuz)
Medicines and consumables 508.47 504.06
Total & 508.47 504.06
For details of inventories pledged, refer Note 16.
8 Trade reccivables
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 Mureh 2024
Current (Unsecured)
Considered good 3,164.36 2,510.32
Less: Luss allowance {540.25) (660.60)
Net trade receivables I,6i8.11 1,849.66
For details of trade receivables pledged, refer Note 16,
The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 39.
8.1 Trade receivables ageing schedule o o _
articulars | As at Asut
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Undisputed trade reccivables- considered good, unsecured
Outstanding for following periods from dug date of payment
Not due 708.80 750.3G
Less than 6 months 1.633.08 1,144.16
6 months - 1 year 559.03 360.59
1-2 years 139.45 98.50
2-3 years ) 51.04 44,50
More than 3 ycars 72.96 11227
3,164.36 2,510.32

o[ CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS




Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amounts in INR lakks, unless otherwisc stated

8.2 Loss allowance provision matrix- default rates applicd at each reporting date

8.3

10

11

12

13

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
9% - 16% 10% - 55%

Not due and Due date to 1 year
1-2 years
More than 2 years

16%-91%
91% - 100%

55% - 70%
70% - 160%

Movement of loss allowance
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 660.66 872.66
Add: Provision of loss allowance created during the year (114.41) (212.00)
Less: Bad debts written off during the year = -
Balance at the end of the year 546,23 661).56
Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2024

Balances with banks

-On current accounts 2392 G.10
-Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 10.00 -
Cash on hand 33.23 34.23
Total 67.15 43.35

Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents above

Particulars As at As it
31 March 2023 31 March 2024

In deposit accounts (with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) 21.00 -

Total 21.00 -

Loans

Particulars As at - Asat

3§ Marcia 2025

31 March 2024

Measurcd at amortiscd cost
Non-current
Unsecured, considercd good

ri

Dues from related parties (refer Note 37) 690 24 476 04

Toial 690.2 4 476.04

Other financial assets A
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Non-current

Fixed deposits with banks # 31.00 63.00
Rent and other deposits™ 348.77 353.92
[nterest accrued on (ixed deposits with banks 6.57 7.07
Total 386.34 423.99
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Unbilled receivables 14010 132.7
Rent and other deposits * 3.03 10.80
Dhues from related parties (refer Note 37) 426.09 241.30
Inlerest accrued on fixed deposits with banks 4 14 -
Other loans and advances 284.68 22598
Advance to employees 35.98 29.58
Total 894.02 649.45
Total 1,280.36 1,064.44
# The above deposits are maintained against guarantees issued by Banks and are restricted for periods exceeding 12 months as at the Balance Sheet.
~ Includes deposits given to related parties, Refer Note 37.
Other asscts

Asat Asat

Particulars

31 March 20625

31 March 2024

Unsecured, considered good

Noa-curreat

Prepaid expenses

Advances {or capital goods

Total

Current

Prepaid expenses .
Balance with statutory / government authorities
Advance for supply of gouds and services
Total
Total

24.40 42.35
15041 104.93
13481 147.28
99,16 03.87
25,36 34.70
12327 122.55
247.79 30108
382.60 448.36




Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

14 Share capital
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number of shares (in Amount Number of shares Amount
lakhs) (in lakhis)

Aulhorised
Equity shares of INR.10 each 110.00 [,100.00 110.00 1,100.00
Redeemable preference shares of INR. 100 each 10.00 1,000.00 10.00 1,000.00

120.00 2,100.00 120.00 2,100.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity shares of INR 10 each 107.86 1,078 58 107.86 1,078 58
Total 107.86 1,078.58 107.86 1,078.58
Refer Notes 14.1 (0 149 below.

143 Reconcilintinn of shares outstanding at the besinping and ¢ the end of the reporting perviod

14.2 Rights, prcferences sl restrictions attached to equity shares

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2924

Number of shares Amount Number ol shaves Amount
(in lakhs) {in lakhs)
Fqu.ty shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up
Balance as at the heginning of the year 107 86 1,078 58 10786 1,078.58
Issue of equily shares - - . -
Balance as at the end of the year 107.86 1,078.58 137.86 1,078.58

The Company has a single class of equity shares. All equity shares rank cqually with regard to dividends and share in the Company's sesidunl assets. The equity shares are entitled Lo receive
dividend as declared from time to lime. The voting rights of an cquity sharcholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are m proportior: to skaieholders' shere of the paid-up equity capital of the
Company. Voting nghts cannot bz exercised in respect of sharcs on which any call or vibier sums presently payable have not been paid

Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of shares

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining afier distribution of all preferentinl amounts in proportion

to the number of eyuity shares held

14.3 Shares held by ultimate liolding Company

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number of shar:s Amount Number of shares Amount
(in 1akhs) (in lakhs)
Liquity shares of INR 10 each filly pard-up held by
Aster DM Healthcare Limited, Holding and Ultimate holding Company 6201 620.08 62.01 620.08
14.4 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company.
Particulars As at Asal

31 March 2025

" 31 Maxcli 2024

Number of shares

% of holding,

Number of shares % of holding
‘0 U

{in lakhs) {in laklis)
Fquity shares of INR 10 cach fully paid-up held by . 5
Aster DM Healthcare Limited 6201 57.49% 62,01 57.49%
Dr. P. Ramesh Babu 21 46 19,90% 21.45 19.90%
P. Muhalakshmi 872 8.08% 3.72 8,08%
P. Raja Nishanih 567 526% 567 5.26%
P.Madh ith 554 5.13% 554 5.13%

14.5 Details of sharcholding of Promoters
I'romoter name

Shares held as at 31 March 2025 Shares held as at 31 March 2024

Percentage change

Number of % of total shares Number of shares % of (otal shares .
shares during the year ended 31
March 2025
Dr. P. Ramesh Babu 21,46,404 19.90% 21,46,404 19.90% -
P. Mahalakshmi 8.72,000 8.08% 8,72,000 808% -
P. Raja Nishant 5,67,000 526% 5,67,000 5.26% -
P. Madlu Smitha 5,53,500 513% 5,583,500 5.13% -
P. Maliendra Babu 2,82,000 261% 2,82,000 2.61% -
P V Ravikishore 40,000 037% 40,000 0.37% -
Madhumathi K 30,000 0.28% 30,000 0.28% -
P. Subba Rao 30,000 028% 30,000 0.28% -
P. Murali Mohan 20,000 0. 19% 20,000 0.19% -3
M Sailaja 9,000 0.08% 9,060 0.08% .
. Manmohan Krishna 7.500 007% 7,500 0.07% -
P. Ashok Kumar 4409 0.04% 4,400 0.0:% -
P S Kamala Devi Z,500 0.02% 2,500 0.02% -
Dr. P. Vasundhara Devi 2,500 0.02% 2,500 0.02% -
T Madhuri 2,500 0.02% 2,50 002% -
P Padma Sree 2,500 0.02% 2,500 0.02% -
P. Sri Lakshmi 2,500 0.02% 2,500 0.02% -
Usha Rani Pothineni 2,500 0.02% 2,500 002% -
Potluri Gopi Krishna 2,250 0.02% 2,250 002% -
R. Radha Bai 2,500 0.02% 2,500 0.02% -
R. V. Chalapathi Rao 2,500 0.02% 2,500 0.02% -
M.S. Rama Mohan Rao 1,000 0.01% 1,000 0.01% -




Dr. Ramesh Cardinc and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statemcnts for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

14.6 Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts:
The Company has not reseved any shares for issuing under options and contracts

14.7 Details of bonus shares issued duving the past 5 years immediately preceeding 31 March 2025:
The Company has not issued bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding 31 March 2025

14.8 Details of shares issued for consideration other than for cash during the past 5 years immediately preceeding 31 March 2025:

The Company has not allotted any equily shares as fully paid-up without consideration being received in cash during the past 5 years immediately preceeding 31 March 2025

14.9 Details of buyback of shares during the past 5 years immediately preceeding 31 March 2025:
The Company has nol brought back any shares during the past 5 years immedialely preceeding 31 March 2025

15 Other equity .
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 Mavel 2024

Reserves and Surplus

Securities premium 7,454.54 7.454 54
- Used to record the premium received on issue of shares. 1t is wilised in
accordance with the provisions of the Conipanies Act, 2013

Capital redemption reserve 40 00 40.00
-A statulury reserve crealed to the extent of sum equal to the somina! value of the
share capital extinguished on buyback of Company's own shutes pursuant to
Section 69 of the Companies Act. 2013

Retaincd eamings 5,175 28 4,593.26
-Retained earnings comprises of the amounts that can be distributed by the
Company as dividends to ils equity share holders

Items of comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefil liability/ (asset), net of tax (133.02} (58.29)

- Pertains Lo the remeasurement of the net defired benelit liability/ (assel)
recagriz=J nel of tax

Total ' 13,586,149 2.329.51




Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial stotements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unlzss otherwisc stated

16 Borrowings

Particulars Asat Asut
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current
Secured - ut amortised cost
Term loans from banks (Refer notes below) 1.809.24 1,935.77
Total 1.809.24 1,935.77
Current
Secured - at amortised cost
Cash credit and overdraft facilities from banks 332.76 661.50
Current maturitics of long term borrowings rom banks 764.77 77765
Loan from Subsidiary 76.65 -
Total 1,174.18 1,439.15
Tatal 2.983.42 3.374.92
Information about the Company's exposure to inferest rate and hquidity risks are included in Note 39
A Detnils of securities, terms and conditions on lonns
Pari Details of loan Nature of Securily Charye registraiion
as on 31st Maren | _abetails with MCA®
25 K T Clharge
regtatrationsnodification
e
HDFC Bank Terriloan 1 Leano/s - Nit Primavy Securily: Equitable mortzage of  *Cate of loan - 28-10- | Charge dato - £3-08-
(31 March 2024, .eave ncld rights on 304,302.47 Sq. Fbu'lt |2016 2024
INR 18B.74 lakhs) |up areas (3 cellars + Ground + & floors) un
Interest Rate - subleased land of 4,628.77 sq. fts, site in Date of MOE - 17-04-
§.46% to 8.56 {31 |survey no. 1072, T.5.0:247/248, Wardno | 2020
March 2024 : 17, Nagarampalem, Guntur,
8.56% 10 9.60%)  |Secondary Security: Hypothecation of stock
Repayment tarms- |and baok debts less than 180 days. Margins
75 to 84 monthly  |on stock and book debts are 25%.
installments Corporate Guarantee of Lakshmana Hotels
Pyt, Ltd.
HDFC Bank Term loan 2 Loan ofs - INR | Primary Security: Equitable mortgage of Date of loan - 08-02- |Charge Jale - 08-08-
295,49 lakhs lease hold rights on 304,302.47 5q. Ft built {2022 2024
(31 March2024: |up areas {3 cellars + Ground + 8 floors) on
INR 563.10 lakhs) bl d land of 4,628.77 sq. fts. sile in
Interest Rate - survey no. 1072, T.5.0:247/248, ‘Nard no
9,25% {31 March |17, Nagarampalem, Guntur.
2024:8.25%to Secondary Security: Hypothecation of storck
9.25%) and beok debts less than 180 days, Margine
Repayment terms- |on stnck 2nd book Jdebts are 25%.
£4 monthly Ccrpeorata Guaiantee of Lzkshinsnz Hotels
installments Pyt Ltd,
HOFC Bank Term loan 3 Loan ofs - INR Primary Security: Hypothecation of stock | Date of ican - 01-04- | Charge date - 08-U3-
1625.31 lakhs and bcok debts less than 180 days. Margins | 2022 ) 2024
(31 March 2024 :  |on stock and book debts are 25%.
INR 194633 lalhs) | Secondary Security:EM on the Sarghamitra
Intetest Rate - Building property situated at sy no.51/1/al
7.1%to0 7.7% {31 |sq.yards 1800 and sq.yards 1965,
March 2024 : Sy.No.58/2b sq.yards 564 at pelluru village
6.75% to 7.70%) ongalo municipality, Ongole 523002,
Repayment terms- | Corporate Guarantee of Lakshmana Hotels
34 monthly Pvt. Ltd.
installments N
HDFC Bank Term loan 4 Loan ofs - INR Primary Security: Equitable mortgage of Date of loan - 14-03- |Charge date - 08-08-
653,20 lokhs lease hold rights on 304,302.47 3q. Ft built |2624 2024
{31 March 2024 : |up areas (3 cellars + Ground + 8 ficors) cn
Nil) subleased land of 4,628 77 s, fis. site in
intergst Rate survey no. 1072, T.5.0:247/248 Ward no
8.54% w8 50w 131]17, Negarampalem, Gunlur,
<h 702¢ : M) |Srcondary Security: Hypothecation of ste.ck
Fepa;manttesns |and book debts less than 180 days.
adinenthly Cerporate Guarantee of Lakshmana Hotels
instaliments PotLd.
D There are no continuing defsults ia the repayment of the principal loar: and interest amounts
17 Trade payables
Particulurs As at As at
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Total outstanding ducs of micro and small enterpriscs 264,41 1128
Total outstanding ducs of creditors ather than micro and small enturpriscs 2.347.13 2.873.61
Tatal 2,611.54 2.984.89
All trade payables arc 'current’, The average credit period taken is 30-60 days
"The Company's esposure to currcncy and liquidity risks related to tradc payables is disclosed in Notc 39
17.1 _Trade payables ageing schedule (Undixpued)
Particulars Dutstanding for lollowing periods from due diite of payvuent Total*
Less thar | year 1-2 years 2.3 venrs Mare than 3 yeurs
Bolance ns at 31 March 2025 +
Micro and small cnterpnscs 262 41 - = - 264,41
Others parglad ] 3723 1228 SR 233013
Total 3572 57.13 12.28 4.8 2.611.54

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Micro and small enterpriscs 11128 - - - 111.28
Others 2.853.59 13.00 567 1.35
Total ! 2,964.87 13,00 367 1.33

# Includes unbilled ducs of INR 783 95 (INR 1,223.58 as at 31 March 2024)




Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Mulispeciality Hospitat Private Limited
Notes to the financinl statements for the year ended 31 Mnrch 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

17.2

—
@

—_
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0

Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medi Enterprises Develop Act, 2006 (“'the Act™) based on the information available with the Company are given below:
Particulars st L]
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
264.41 111.28

“The principal amount remaining unpaitl to any supplier at the end of the vear

The interest due on the principal remaining outstanding as at the end of the ycar
The amount of intcrest paid under the Act, along with the amounts of the payment
made beyond the appointed day during the year

The amount of intercst duc and payable for the period of delay n making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest speeificd under the Act

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

The amount of further interest remaining duc and payable cven in the succeeding
years, util such date when (he interest ducs as above are actually paid io the small
enterprise, {or the purposz of disall as a deductible expenditure under the
Act

Note: The Mimstre of Micio, Small and Medium Enterprises hiag tssucd an office memoranduimn dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro ané Small Enerpriscs should sention in their

ot with its the Entrep M
enterprises as ol March 31, 2023 has bieen made m the financial statements hased on miormeation re

i Number as allocad after filing of the Memormnoam. Accordingly, the uiselosurc i respect of the amounts payable to suzh
il sl anailable with the Company. Furthar i visw ol the mauagement, the impact of interest, if

any, that may be payable in accordanee with the provisions of the Micro, Srnall aued Medium Enterpriscs Dovelopment Act, 2006 (“The MSMED Act’) is not expected to be material. The Company has

not received any claim for interest from any supplicr

Other financial liabilitics
Particulars As at Asat
31 Ma.ch 2025 31 March 2024

Non-current
Sccurity deposit 37.00 37.00
Total 37.00 371.00
Current
Tntzrest accrued but not duc on borrowings* 1413 1741
Ducs to related party (refer Noie 37) 410.29 30887
Ducs 1o creditors for capital goods 713.62 451 84
Total _ 1,138.04 77612
* The details ¢Finterest rates, rapay ment and other erms are disclosed in Note 16.
Thic Company’s ex.posure Lo entrency and liquidity risk 1elated to the above financial liabilitics is disclosed ir: Note 39
Provisions

’ Asat As at

Particulurs

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Non-current
Provision for cinployee henefits

Define'l benelit ok ligation - Gratuity (1efer Nole 36) 735.65 514,92

Total 756.65 614.92

Current

Provision for emplayee benefits

Defined benefit obligation - Gratuity (refer Note 36) - 45 89

Total - 48 89

Other liabilities

Particulars As at Asat
_ A1 _Mareh 2025 31 Mureh 2024

Current

Statutory dues payables 245.49 240,15

Advance from paticnts 286.32 178 Gl

531.81 418.77

Total




Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

21 Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from hospital and medical services 22,518.55 20,913.35
Revenue from sale of pharmacy 2,668.98 2,381.40
Revenue from canteen 397.28 366.73
Other operating income 215.52 109.39
Total 25,800.33 23,770.87

The Company’s revenue from other operating income comprises primarily of rever.ue from medical courses conducted at the hospital, income
from revenue sharing agreements. Revenue from operations includes INR §2.26 (31st March 2024: INR 66.78) from related partics. Refer Note

37.

(1) Category of Customers

Particulars For the year ended Yor (lse year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash (Including Cards/Unified Payments Interface/wallets/bank 15,090.64 14,056.78
transfer/Cheques)
Credit (Including CoPay) 10,096.89 9,237.97
Revenue from llospital and medical services and pharmacies 25,187.53 23,294.75
Others 612.80 476.12
Revenue from Operations 25,800.33 23,770.87

Nature of treatment

Particulars For the year ¢ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

In- paticnt 18,066.40 16,761.94

Out- patient 4.452.15 4,151.41

Total (Revenue from hospital and medical services) 22,518,558 20,913.35

(if) Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contract price is as follows:

Healtheare services (Including other operating income)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Contract price (as reflected in the invoice raised on the customer as per the 27,499.25 25.477.41

terms of the contract with customer)

Reduction in the form of discounts and disallowances (1,698.92) (1,706.54)

Revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss 25,800.33 23,770.87

(iii) Other operating income

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Marcl: 2025 31 Marcl 2024
Revenue sharing arrangement 201.74 17.89
Others 13.78 91.50
Revenue recogmsed in the statement of profit and loss 215.52 109.39

22 Other income

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Interest income
on financial assets carried at amortised cost (Lease deposits)
on fixed deposits with banks
on others (Refer note 37)
Interest on income tax refund
Unrealised foreign exchange Gain
Realised foreign exchange gain
Share of profit in limited liability partnership
Gain on sale of investments (net)
Profit on sule of property, plant and equipment
Other non operating Income

Total

7.17 7.50
437 4.06
73.50 46.03
24.02 23.80
. 0.07
124 s

6.42 69.23
0.1 8.43

. 0.54
143.30 55.53
260.13 215.19

Other incomne includes INR 50.25 (3 st March 2024: INR 33.77) from related paities. Refer Note 37.
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23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Purchases of medicines and medical consumables

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Medicines and medical consumables
Total

Changes in inventories

5,156.97

5,126.28

5,159.97

5,126.28

Particulars For the year ended For the year ¢nded

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Opening stock 504.06 492.69

Closing stock 508.47 504.06

Total (4.41) (11.37)
Professional fees to consultant doctors

Particulars For the year ended For tlie year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Professicnal fees to consultant doctors 5,095.46 5,714.39

Total 6.095.40 5.714.39

Lab outsourcing charses

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Lab outsourcing charges
Total

235.56

148.75

235.56

148.75

Lab outsourcing charges includes INR 17.64 (31st March 2024: INR 18.60) from related parties. Refer Note 37.

Employee benefits expense

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries and allowances 6,563.16 6,315.56
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer Note 36) 394.49 389.65
Staff welfare expense 40.06 42.51
Expenses related to post eniployment defined benefit plans 147.40 135.28
Total 7,145.11 6,883.00

Finance cost

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest on bank borrowings 248.74 299.32
Interest on lease liabilities (refer Note 34) 344.79 346.30
Other borrowing costs 25.73 10.72
Total 619.26 656.34

Finance costs includes INR 30.72 (3 Ist March 2024: Nil) from related parties. Refer Note 37.

Depreciation and amortisation

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer ote 4) 1,223.70 1,150.73
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer note 34) 199.24 193.76
Amortisation on intangible assets (refer note 3) 19.20 28.69
Total 1,442.14 1.373.18
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30 Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Food and beverage 429.64 446.74
Power, water and fuel 666.57 677.68
Housekeeping, security and others 136.74 80.04
Legal, professional and other consultancy 195.03 167.70
Auditors remuneration (refer note 30.1) 17.01 15.32
Rent (refer note 34) 109.62 87.65
Repairs and maintenance - plant and machinery 609.86 556.36
Repairs and maintenance - building 26.38 35.75
Repairs and maintenance - Others 219.59 200.40
Advertising and promotional 268.41 262.12
Rates and taxes 145.88 146.93
Allowances for credit losses on financial assets (refer note 8.3) (11441 (212.00)
Travelling and conveyance 162.27 149.71
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 0.17 -
Net loss on account of foreign exchange fluctuations 14.55 =
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 30.2) 18.69 9.49
Insurance 25.79 33.15
Communication 76.58 69.68
Office expenses 161.73 165.63
Donation & charity 5.20 1.00
Bank Charges 59.70 53.89
Bad debts written ol 57.41 -
Miscellaneous expenses 222.67 157.69
Total 3,515.08 3,104.93

Payment to auditors (net of goods and service tax)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Maich 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For statutory audit 13.56 13.00

For reimbursement of’ expenses 3.51 2.32

Total 17.01 {5.32
30.2 Details of corporate social responsibility (CSR)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

- Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 18.69 9.49
- Amount of expenditure incurred 18.69 9.49
- Shortfall at the end of the year - -

- Total of previous year shortfall - -

- Reason for shortfall Not applicable Not applicable

Promoting healthcare, including  Promoting healthcare,
preventive healthcare, eradicaling including preventive
hunger, poverty and malnutrition  healthcare and eradicating
and promoting education poverly

including special education

- Nature of CSR activities
- Details of related party transactions
- Whether provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering
into a contractual obligation
- Amount spent during the year on:
Construction/acquisition of an asset s

On purposes other than above 18.69 9.49
Total 18.69 9.49

Not applicable Not applicahle

Not applicable Not applicable

HARTERED \
COUNTANTS |
A2
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31

Income tax assets (net)
{a) Income tax assets/(liability)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income tax payments, including taxes withheld 758.73 908.02
Less: Provision made lowards tax liabilities 271.27) (284.35)
Net income tax assets/(liability) at the end 487.46 623.67
{b) Amount recognised in stal t of profit and loss
Particulars For the yenr ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current tax 271.27 123.83
Current lax for earlicr years (11.52) (20 10)
Defeired tax (including MAT credit entitlement) 310.52 116.49
Tax expcnse for the year 570.27 220.22
{c} Amount recognised in other comprchensive income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deferred tax (including MAT credit 3095 oy
entitlzment)
Tax expense for the year 30.95 10.17
(d) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
The standard rate of corporation tax applied to reported profil is 29.12 per cent (2023-24: 27 82 per cent) The Company has not vpted for concessional tax rate regitne effective from
Parliculars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit belore tax 1,852.29 990.56
Statutory income tax rate 29.12% 27.82%
Tax expenses /(asset) 539.39 275.57
Additional deduction on invesiment allowance (35.17) (31.72)
Non-deduclible expenses/ permanent diflerences (.15) 1.51
Others 66.20 (2511
Income tax expense 570.27 220,22
Income faxes
(c) Recognised deferred tax assets and abilities
(i) Delerved tax assets and Lithililies are attributable to the following:
Particulars Gslat GO
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deferred tax asset
Provision for expected credit loss 159.07 183.79
Provision for employee benefits 22036 184.59
On account of ROU and lease liabililies 446.39 421.73
MAT credit entitlement receivable 443,67 779.58
Total deferred tax asset Rk LAy
Deferred tax liability
Excess of depreciation on property, plant and equipment under Income Tax Acl, 1961 over deprecialion under Companies Acl (738.92) (815.69)
Total deferred tax linhility (788.92) (815.69)
480.57 760.10

Deferred tax asset / {linbility) (net)

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and liabilities if and only if' it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax labilities related to income taxes levied

by the same taxation authority and the Company intends Lo settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis
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31 Income tax assets (net)

31  Income taxes (continued)
(ii) Movement in temporary differences

Recognised through

Balance as at 31

Particulars Balance as at Recognised through  Recognised in Statement of Profit
1 April 2024 retained earnings and Loss other coinprehensive March 2025
income

Provision for expected credit loss 18379 - (24.73) - 15¢.07
Provision for employee benefils 184.09 - 4.7 3095 22036
On account of ROU and lease liabilities 427.73 - 18.65 - 44639
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit 779.58 - (335.91) - 443.07
entitlement receivable

(R15.69) - 26.76 - (788 92)
Excess of depreciation on property, plant and
equipment under Income Tax Act, 1961 over
depreciation under Companies Act
Net deferred tax liabilifics 760.10 - (310.51) 30.93 4560.57

Balance as =t 31

Particulars Balance as at Recognised through Recognised in Statement of ’'rofit  Recognised through

1 April 2023 retained eurnings and Loss other comprehensive March 2024

income

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) in relation to:
Provision for cxpecled credit loss 24277 - (58 9¥) - 18379
Provision for employee benefits 157.17 17.34 1017 184 69
On account of ROU and lease liabilities 406,15 2158 - 12773
MAT credit entitlement receivable 932.50 - (152.92) 77958
Excess of depreciation on property, plant and (R72.18) - 56.49 (815.69)
equipment under Inconie Tax Act, 1961 over
depreciation under Companies Acl
Total deferrved tax asset/(liability) 866.41 - (116.4%) 10.17 760.10

(iii) Deferred tax assets nol vecogaised un grounds of prudence- Nil

() Tax losses carried forward - Nil
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32 Contingent liabilities and commitments

For the year erded  For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contingent liabilities
Value Added Tax (Refer Note (e) below) 16.99 16.99
Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts reniaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for 379.24 312,35

a. On 28th February 2019, the Hon’ble Supreme Cowt of India has delvered s judgment clarifying the principles that reed to te applied in determining the
compouents of salaries and wages on which Provident Fund (PF) contiibutions need Lo be made by establishments. Basis this judpnant, the Company has re-computed
its liability towards PF from the month of March 2619 and has paid PF as pet Supreme Court judaement. In respect of the eaulicr petiods/years, the Cempany has been
legally advised that there are numerous interpretative challenges on the application of the judgment retrospectively. Based on such legal advice, the Management
believes that it is impractivable at this stage lo reliably measure the provision 1equired, if any, and accordingly, no provisicn has been made towards the same.
Necessary adjustments, if any, will be made to the books as more clarily emerges on this subject.

b. The Company does not have any long-term: commitments or material non-cancellable contractual connmitments/contracts, including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foresceable losses

c. The Company was permitted to run a COVID Care Centre by the Krishna District Medica! Health Officer in accordance with several measures undertaken by the
Government of Andhra Pradesh after the outbreak of COVID-19 at Swama Palace Hotel, Vijayawada. On 09 August 2020, a fire accident took place at Swama Palace
Hotel. A written report was submitted by (he Tahsildar — Vijayawada East, at the Governorpet Police Station, Vijayawada regarding the said fire accident which was
registercd as FIR No.173 of 2020 of Governorpet Police Station, under Sections 304 (1I), 308 read with 34 of IPC. FIR was filed against the Management of (he
Company and Swama Palace Hotel. Several writ petitions have been filed by the Management of the Company to quash the proceedings in FIR No.173 of 2020;
however, the investigations have been allowed to continue.

Investigations aie ongoing and the final report is yet to be filed. The Company has filed a discriminaticn petition against the Government in the Hon'ble High Court.
The Company has reviewed this litigation and based on the legal advice, the Company believes that it is impracticable at this stage to reliably measure the amount of
provision required, if any. The Company does not expect (he cutcome of these proceedings to have a m terially adverse effect cu its financial pusition,

d. The Company has reviewed all its pending Litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisious are 1eqiired and disclosed as conlingent
liability where applicable, in its financial statements, The Cempany does riol expect the cutcome of these proceedings to bave a materially ddverse effect on ifs
financial position. The Company doés 1ot expect any 12imbursement in respect of the above céntingent liabilities, :

e, The Company has received a demand order from the Commercial Taxes Department of Govemment of Andhra Pradesh in respect of Value Added Tax (VAT)
pertaining to the {inancial years 2013-14, 2014-15 and 2015-16 based on the scrutiay carried out by the department. The Company is contestiug the case and has paid
INR 8.49 lakhs under protest in this regard.

33 Earnings per share

A.  Basic earnings / (loss) per share
The calculation of profit/(loss) attributable to equity share holders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the purpose of basic caruings / (loss)
per share calculations are as follows® ’
i) Net profit/ (loss) attributable to equity share holders (basic)

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Net profit / (loss) for the vear. attributable to the equity share holders 1,282.02 770.34
ii) Weighted average number of equity shares (basic)

Particulars For theyear ended  Yor the year ended

31 March 2625 31 March 2024

Opening balance (1efer Notz 14) = 5 107.86 107.86

Weighled average number of equity shaies of INR 10 each for the year ’ 107.86 107.86

Eamings/ (loss) per share, basic 11.89 7.14

B. Diluted earnings / (loss) per share
The calculation of profit / (loss) attributable to equity share hiolders and weighted average number ol equity shares outstanding, after adjustment for the effects of all

dilutive potential equity shares is as follows:
i) Net profit/ (loss) attributable to equity share holders diluted)

Particulars For the year cnded  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Net profit / (loss) for the vear, attributable to the equity share holders 1,282,02 770.34

ii) Weighted average number of equity shares (diluted)

Particulars For the year cnded  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Weighted avcrage number of equity shares of INR 10 cach for the year (diluted) 107.86 107.86

Earnings / (loss) per share, diluted 11.89 7.14
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34 Lease liabilities and Right-of-use asscts
The Company has taken land and buildings on lease from various parties fiom where the healthcare and managewment servicer's are rendeved, The leases typically run

35

for a period of 1 yoar - 33 years. Lease payments arc renegotiated nearing the expiry to reflect market rentals,

(i) Lease liabilitics

Following are the changes in the lease liabilities for the year ended 31 Murch 2025 and 31 March 2024:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance 3,820.25 3,$92.18
Additions’Modifications/Reversals 345,00 38.32
Finance cost accrued dwing the period (refer Note 28) 344,79 34630
Payment of lease liabilities (520.96) (457.05)
Closing balance 3,989.08 3,820.25
Non-current lease liabilities 3,821.25 3.673.75
Current lease liabilities 167.83 146.50

(i) Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flowy

Fur the year ended!

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Less than one year 307.17 465.27
One to five years 2,544,014 1,941,18
More than five vears _5118¢c8 5.387.34
Totul undiscouated lease fiabilities 7.77-'.!'____ 7.793.79

(iii) Right-of-usc ussets
Right- of-use assets are presented on the balance sheet.

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Gross carrying value

Opcening balance

Addition/Modifications/Deletions to tight-of-use assets
‘Total gross carrying value

Accumulated Depreciation

Opening balance

Depreciation for the year (refer Note 29)
Total accumulated Duepreciation

Net Balance

(i) Anomnts recognised in statement of profit or loss

31 March 2922

3,290.55 3,246.29

372,66 44.26
3,663.21 3,290,535
1,607.80 814,04

199.24 193.76
1.207.04 1,907.80
2,456.17 2,282.75

Particulars .

Yor the year euded
31 Mavch 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Lease rental 2xpenses for leas: where Ind AS 116 is not applicakle (refer Nete 30) 109.62 57.65
Interest on lease labilities (refer Note 28) 344,79 346.30
19924 193.76

Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer Note 29)

(v A r ised in st of eash flows

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Total cash outflow for leases

520.96

457,03

Segment reporting

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108”) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating segments and
related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customners, Based on the “inanagement appronch” as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating
segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with (he internal reporting provided to the Chicf Operating Decision Maker (CODM).The CODM evaluates the
Company's performance and allocates resources on overall basis. The Company’s sole operating scgment is therefore ‘Medical andd Ilcalthears Services'.
Accordingly, there are no additional disclosure to be provided ander Ind A3 108, other than these already provided in the financial statemenis
The Company operates in india and revenue generations is from a wide spiead of the customers and hence the gioup wide disclusures of major customers atc not

applicable.
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36 Employee benefits
a) Defined benefit plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (‘Gratuity Act’). Under the Gratuity Act, employee who has completed five
years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The gratuily benefit provides for a Jump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while 1n employment or on
termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 / 26 days’ salary payable for each completed year of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the
Company makes contributions to recognized funds in India. Liability with regard to this plan is determined by an actuarial valuation as at the end of the year und are
charged 1o the Statement of profit and loss. The gratuity obligation is recognized subject to a maximum limit of INR 20,00,000, as prescribed under the Payment of

Gratuity Act, 1972

I'allowing table sets out the status of employee benefits as at balance shect date

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 Marclh 2921
Present value of defined benefit obligation 904,81 717.88
Present value of plan assets (148.16) (54,07)
Net liability r ised 756.65 €63.81
A. Funding

‘The Company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees. Every year, the insurance Company carries out a funding valuation

based on the latest employee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in the assets arising as a result of such valuation is funded by the Company

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the

balance sheet for the respective pluns:

B. (i) Reconciliation of the present value ol defined benefit obligation

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 717.88 611.49
Current service cost 103.77 94,40
Interest cost 50.25 44.03
Benetits paid (72.97) (67.94)
Actuarial (gains)/ loss recognised in the other comprehensive income
- experience adjustments 19.62 27.40
- changes in financial assumptions 86.26 8.50
904.81 717.88

Balance at the ead ol the year

{ii) Reconciliation of the present value of plan assets

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 5407 46.53
Contributions paid into the plan by employer 160.85 73.00
Benefits paid (72.97) (67.94)
Interest income on plan assets’ 6.62 3.15
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets (0.41) (0.67)
Balance at the end of the year 148.16 54.07
Net defined benefit liability / (asset) 756.65 663.81
Current - 4389
Non-current 756.65 614.92
C. (i) Expense r ized in the Stat t of profit and loss

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Current service cost 103.77 94.40

Interest cost 5025 44.03

Interest income (6.62) (3.15)
147.40 135.28

(i) R ements recognised in Other comprehensive income

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation
Return on plan assets excluding interest income

105.88 35.90
041 0.67
106.29 36,57
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36 Employee benefits (continued)
D. Actuarial Valuation

The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method. The
defined benefit plan typicaily exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk

Invesunent risk

The present value of the defined bencfit plan liability denominated in Indian Rupee is calculated using a discount
rate determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on govemment bords, For other
defined benefit plans, the discount rate is determined by reference to high quality corporate bond yields when
there is a deep market for such bonds; if the retum on plan asset is below this tate, it will create a plan deficil
Currently the plan in India is investments in government securities and other debt instruments

Interest rate risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability

The present value ol the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the

Longevity risk mortality of plan paiticipants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the
plan participants will increase (e plan’s liability.
Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan

participants, As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability

(i) Assumptions uscd to determine benefit obligations:

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted average)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Financial assumptions
Discount rate 6.40% 7.00%
Fulure salary growth rate 5.00% 4.00%
Attrition rate 10.00% 10.00%
Return onr Plan assels 7.00% 7.20%
Mortality table LALM (2012-14) TALM (2012-14)
Retirement age 53 years 58 years

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are sct in accordance with the published statistics by the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (IALM)
The Compary assesses these assumptions with its projected long-tern plans of growth and prevalent industry standards Tlie discount rale is besed on the government

securities y.chl

Gratuily is applicable eoly to emsployees drawing a salary in Indian rupees and there are no other foreign defined benefit gratuity pluns
X i 3 g Y1

ii) Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial essumptions for the detemiination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increass and withdrawal rate. Rzasonably
possible changes at the reporting date to one of the actuarial assumptions, affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Particulars Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount Rate ( 1% movement} (54.84) 61.72 (40.68) 42.17
Future Salary Growth (1% movement) 61.96 (56.03) 46.45 42.17)
Withdrawal rate (1% movement} 1.51 (1.97) 538 (6.14)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefil obligation as it is unlikely that the changes in ussimptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated, In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value cf the defined benefit
obligation has been calculared using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit
obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet. There was no change in the metheds and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivily analysis from prior years

(iii) The Company has to pay Nil (31 March 2024: INR 48.89) as contribution towards its defined benefit obhgation in the next financial year. .

b) Deflined contribution plan

Particulars As at Asat

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contribution to Provident Fund 306.06 303.19
Employee State Insurance 88.43 86.46
Comp ts recognised in the stat t of profit and loss 394.49 389.65
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37 Related parties

(i) Names of related parties and description of relationship with the Company:
(a) Holding Company

(b) Subsidiary Company

(c) Fellow subsidiaries

(d) Key managerial personnel and their relatives (KMP)
Dr. P. Ramcsh Babu
Hemish Purushottam
Pavitra Pramod Hunswadkar
Suggula Hari Krishna

(e) Other Non Executive Directors
Thadathil Joseph Wilson
Devanand Kolothodi
Sunil Kumar M R
Dr. Nitish Shetty (till 17 Oct 2024)
Ramesh Kumar S (w.e.f 17 Oct 2024)
P. Raja Nishant
M.S. Rama Mohan Rao (Chainnan and Director)

(g) Relatives of KMP
P. Subba Rao
P S Kamala Devi
P. Madhu Smitha
P. Mahendra Babu
Madhumathi K
Dr. P. Vasundhara Devi
P. Madhuri
R. V. Chalapathi Rao
R. Radha Bai
M Sailaja
P. Mahalakshmi
P V Ravikishore
P. Murali Mohan

(i) Related party transactions:

Aster DM Healthcarce Limited

Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP

Sanghamitra Hospitals Private Limited

Komali Fertility Centre LLP

Komali Fertility Centre-Ongole LLP

Adiran TB Healthcare Private Limited

Aasraya Healthcare LLP

Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited

Managing Dircctor

Company Secretary (till 17 Oct 2024)
Company Secretary (w.e.f 15 Apr 2025)
Chief Financial Officer

(f) Other Independent Directors
Nerendranath Venkatachala
Sri Krishna Nuthalapati

Fathcer of Managing Dircctor
Mother of Managing Dircctor
Daughter of Managing Dircctor
Brother of Managing Director
Sister of Managing Director

Sister of Chairman and Director
Wife of P Mahendra Babu

Father in law of Managing Director
Mother in law of Managing Director
Daughter-in-law of Chairman

Wife of Managing Dircctor
Brother of Managing Dircctor
Brother of Managing Director

The Company has entered into the following transactions with related parties during the year ended 31st March 2025:

Transactions with key managerial persons including Directors:

Particulars Name of the Related Party For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Rent cxpense Dr. P Ramesh Babu 50.68 45.90

Short term cmployce benefits* Dr. P Ramcsh Babu 192.00 192.00

* The above figure does not include provision for gratuity as the same is determined for the Company as a whole based on an actuarial valuation.

Balances receivable / (payable) with key managerial persons including Directors:

Particulars Name of the Related Party For the year ended As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rent deposit® Dr. P Ramesh Babu 26.25 30.00

~ Actual payout done towards the rent deposit.
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37 Related parties (continued)

Transactions with related parties other than key managerial persons :

Particulars Name of the Related Party For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
P. Mahalakshmi 15.45 14.08
Dr. P. Vasundhara Devi 48.85 44.07
P S Kamala Devi 2443 22.04
Rent expense Madh.un.'lathi K 48.85 44.07
M Sailaja 31.51 29.31
P. Mahendra Babu 48.85 44.07
P. Murali Mohan 12.21 11.02
P V Ravikishorc 12.21 11.02
Total 242.36 219.68
Other medical services income Komali Fertility Centre LLP 20.10 19.15
Total 20.10 19.15
Expenses incurred by Holding company on behalf of
subsidiary Aster DM Healthcare Limited, India 117.21 348.42
Lab services received Aster DM Healthcare Limited, India 17.64 18.60
Total 134.85 367.02
Expenses incurred by Holding company on behalf of Sanghamitra Hospitals Privatc Limited
subsidiary 16.74 0.94
Other service given Sanghamitra Hospitals Private Limited 11.28 3.77
Professional services given Sanghamitra Hospitals Private Limited 93.86 72.28
Loan taken from subsidiary Sanghamitra Hospitals Private Limited 49.00
Interest on loan from subsidiary Sanghamitra Hospitals Private Limited 30.72
Total 201.60 76.99
Sale of pharmacy and medical consumables Komali Fertility Centrc LLP 1.43 1.65
Other service Komali Fertility Centre LLP 49.45 42.20
Total 50.88 43.85
Loan given to subsidiary Adiran IB Healthcare Pvt Ltd 173.39 193.81
Interest on loan to subsidiary Adiran IB Healthcare Pvt Ltd 44.71 29.61
Guarantee comission income received Adiran 1B Healthcare Pvt Ltd 5.54 4.15
Professional scrvices given Adiran [B Healthcare Pvt Ltd 152.73 123.74
Total 376.37 351.31
Guarantee comission income received Aasraya Healthcare LLP - 1.36
Expenses incurred by Holding company on behalf of Aasraya Healthcare LLP
subsidiary - 1.19
Total - 2.55
Professional services received Sri Sainatha Hospital Pvt Ltd - 31.59
Salc of phirmacy and medical consumables Sri Sainatha Hospital Pvt Ltd - 10.66
Total - 42.25
P. Mahalakshmi 9.00 9.00
Remuneration paid P. Madhu Smitha 5.88 5.88
P. Mahendra Babu 42.84 42.00
Total 57.72 56.88
Managerial Remuneration Short term employce bencfits 64.59 59.53
Expenses incurred by Holding company on behalf of Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP - 0.33
subsidiary
6.42 69.23

Share of profit from associates & subsidiaries

Komali fertility Centre LLP

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANT
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37 Related parties (continued)
Balances receivable/ (payablc) with related partics other than key managerial persons (contd.)

Particulars Name of the Related Party As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Other financial liabilities (Current) - Ducs to rclated party |Aster DM Hcalthcarc Limited (410.28) (304.19)
Komali Fertility Centre LLP - (4.68)
Sanghamitra Hospitals Private Limited SIS 49.53
Komali Fertility Centrc LLP 5.15 -
Financial assets - Other financial asscts (current) - Ducs  |Adiran IB Healthcare Pt Ltd 259.79 117.45
from related parties Komali Fertility Centre - Ongole LLP 26.38 26.37
Aasraya Healthcare LLP 248 248
Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP 45.07 45.07
Financial assets - Loans (current) - Dues from related Adiran IB Healthcare Pvt Ltd 690.24 476.04
parties
. P . . . . . - (76.65) -
Financial liabilities- Borrowings- Loan from subsidiary Sanghamitra Hospitals Private Limited
Total 629.41 408.47
P. Mahalakshmi 5.61 5.61
Dr. P. Vasundhara Devi 26.25 29.25
. . P. Murali Mohan 6.56 7.31
Financial asscts - Other financial asscts - Rent ¢ th
inancial asscts cr financial asscts - Rent and other BV Ravikishore .56 731
deposits ;
P S Kamala Devi 13.13 14.62
Madhumathi K 26.25 29.25
P. Mahendra Babu 26.25 29.25
Total 110.61 122.60
Managerial Remuneration payable Short term employee benefits 7.40 3.61
Total 7.40 3.61

38 Capital Management

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the debt to total equity ratio.

For the purpose of debt to total equity ratio, debt considered is long-term and short-term borrowings. Total equity comprise of issued share capital and all other equity

reserves.

The capital structure as of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 was as follows:

Particulars As at As al
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company 14,614.77 13,408.09
As a per ge of total capital 68% 65%
Long-term borrowings including current maturitics 2,574.01 2,713.42
Short-term borrowings 332.76 661.50
Mon current lease liability 3,821.25 3,673.75
Current lease liability 167.83 146.50
Total borrowings 6,895.85 7,195.17
As a percentage of total capital 32% 35%
Total capital (Equity and Borrowings) 21,510.62 20,603.26

HARTERED

COUNTANTS
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39 Financlal instruments - Fair values and risk munagement
A.  Accounting classificatlons and falr valucs

The following lable shows the carrying amounts und fair values of (inancial assets and limancial Habilities, meluding their levels in the fair vulue lnerarchy.

31 March 2025

Currying amaount Fuir vishae
Other financial
Note Mandiaiyat; | Finsntisl maets liabilifles nt | Total Carrying value|  Level 1 Level2 Leael 3 Tatal
FVTPL Amartived cant N
amortised cost
Assels
Flinancial ussets measured ut fair value
Current investments 6 ®OR - XOR BUR ROR
R - R LA - LAL)

Flnanclsl assets nut messured ut fuir value
Non-cwrent investinents 6 2,166 12 9,166.12 - -
Trade receivables 8 2,618 11 261811 .
Cash and cash equivalents 9 67.15 6745 - -
Lonns " 69021 690 24 -
|Cther Finanial Assels 12 1,280 36 1.280 36 - -
 Tutal - 13 821L9% - 1352098 - - =
Liubilitles
Financlal llabllitles not measured nf fuir value

Borrowings 16 = - 298342 2,98342 - - -

Lease linbilities M - - 198908 3,989 08 - -

Trade payables 17 . 261154 261154 5 ¥

Other financiul liabilities 18 - 1.175.04 1.175.04 - u -
Tatal - - 10,759.08 10,759.0% - B
31 March 2024

Currying umount Falr value
Nute “"";":,";';,':‘r-' a F::':]::::‘:; F'"‘:‘r"“"n"r':li'n‘:lh'm_“ * | Total Carrving vulue|  Levet Level 2 Level 3 Tal
Financial assels mensured af fair value
Current investments 6 755 - = 7.53 1.5% - 7.55
7.55 - - 735 1.58 - T3

Financlal assefy not measurcd at fuir volue
Non-current investmeits G 871006 . 8,710.06 -
Trade receivables 8 1,849.66 - 1.849.66 - -
Cash and casl equivalents 9 - 4135 - 4335
Jouns Lt 476.04 47604
et | onancinl Asots 12 818 46 - RIR 46
Tolal 111757 - 11.917.57 - - -
Flnuncial liabilifies not measurcd af fuir value

Borrowiiigs 6 . 3,374 92 337492 - -

Demne linkilitics M - 3.820.25 3,820.25 -

Trade payables 17 - = 2,984 k8 2,984.88

Other financial linhilnics 1R - 815.12 RI5.12 = -
Tutal - - 10,995.17 1099517 - - B
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39
B

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
Financial risk management
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall tesponsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework.

The Company’s audit and risk management committee oversee's how 2 monitors compliance with the risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management {tamework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The board is assisted in its oveisight role by intemnal audit. Internal audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the board of directors

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not mect its obligation under a financial inst:ument or custorner contracl, leading to financial loss The credit isk aris2s
principaily from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing aUvities, including deposits with banks and other financial instruments.

Credit risk is conrolled by analysing credit limils and creditwerthiness of custome:s an 1 cortinuous basis fo whon credit has been grawied after obtaining necessary
approvals for credit. The collection from trade receivables are monitored on a continuous Gasis by the reccivables team.

The Company always measures the loss allowance for traJe ieceivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The expected ciedit losses on trade receivables are estimated
using a provision matrix by reference to past default expericnce of the debtors and an analysis of the debtors' current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions of the indusiry in which the debtors operate, mud an assessment of both the current as well as the {orecast direction of conditions at

the reporting date.

The maximum exposure to the credit tisk at the reporting dale is primarly from trade raceivables amounting to INR 2,618.11 (31 March 2024: IMR 1,849.66) and unbilicd
receivables (net of advances from patient) as given in note 12 amounting to INR 140,10 (31 March 2024: INR 132.79)

The movement in lifetime ECL in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

Allowance for credit loss As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning 660.66 872.66
Provision of loss allowance (net) (114.41) (212.00)
Bad debls written off’ - -
Balance at the end 346,25 A60.66

No single custonier accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. Thete is no significaut concentistion of credii . i

Credil 1isk on cash and cash cquivalent and cther bank balances is limited as the Company genetally wansacts with banks vviih high creht ratirgs assigned by imernational
and domestic credit rating agencies,
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39  Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

iy Liquidity risk b
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difTicully i moching the obligations associnled with its financial liabilisics that are sefiled by delivering cash or another financial assel.
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk manngement resta with the board of directors. which has an fiquidity risk & for of the Company''s
short, mediuim and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements, The Compamy’s approach (o managing liquidity & 1o cisure, as for as possible, that it will always have sufMisient

liguidity 1o meet iis liabilitics when duc. under both nonmal and strcssed cond withiesut 3 pilable losses of risking damage to the Company's reputation.

The table belaw: s undiscounted contracty 1ies ol sipni inawcial Habilitics as of 31 Mareh 2025

Particulars Less than 1 Year | More than I year Total
Trade payables 261154 - 2,611.34
(Current Borrowings 1,174.18 - 1,174.18
Non current bormowing B 1,809.24 1,809.24
Lease liabilitiss 507.17 7,263.02 7,770.19
Other financial labilities 1.138.04 37.00 1,175.04
Total 5.430.93 9,109.26 14.540.19

The Company is using the cash inflows from the financial asscts and the ay ailable bank facilitics Lo manage the liquidity. The table below provides the cash inflows from significant financial asscls
as of 31 March 2025

Particulars Less than ] vear | More than 1 vear Totat
|(‘n§h ond Cash equivalenis 6715 - 67.15
Bank balances other than cash aml tash cquivalents above 21.00 21.00
I 808 9.166.12 947421
Trade reecivahles 261811 - 2618.11
Loans 690 24 - 69024
Cther financial asscls 894.02 38634 1.280.36
Total 4.298.60 9.552.46 13.851.07
The table belaw provides details reparding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilitics as of’ 31 March 2024:

Less thnn 1 Year | More than 1 vear Total
Trade payablcs 2,984 89 B 2,084 89
Current Borrowings 661,50 - 661,50
Non current borrowings 777,65 193577 2,713.42
Lease liabilitics 46527 7,328.52 7,793.79
Other (inancial liabilitics 778,12 37.00 815.12
Totnl 5.667.43 9.301.29 14.968.72

The Company is using the cash inflows from the financial asscts and (he available bank facilitics to menage the tiquidity The table below provides the cash inflows from significant financial asscls
as of 31 March 2024:

Particulars Less than | year | More than 1 year Tatal

Cash and Cash cquivalents 4135 - 4335
Investments 753 §.710.06 8.717.61
Trade receivables 1.849.66 . 1,849.66
Loans 476.04 - 476.04
Other Ginancial assels 64045 42399 Loo4.44
Total 317,05 9.134.05 12,151.10

Financial asscts of INR 13,851.06 as at 31 March 2025 is in the form of cash and cash cquivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents. investments, trade reccivables, loans aml
other financial asscts where the Company has assessed the counterparty credit risk. Trade receivables of INR 2,618.11 (net of provision of INR 346,23) as ul 31 March 2025 carricd at amortised
cost and is valued considering provision for allowance using cxpected credit loss method (if any). tn addition to the historical pattern of credit loss, we have considered the likelihood of increased
credit risk. The Cempany has specifically evaluated the potential impact with respect to Healthcarc service scetor. The Company closcly monitors its customiers who are being impacted. Also a
b ial portion of the fi ial assct is related (o investments in subsidiarics (INR 4.166.12) and loans and advances to subsidiaries (INR 690.24) wherein Management has considered on the
projections while doing its assessment for impairment tesling.
Financial asscts of INR 12,151,10 as at 31 March 2024 is in the form ol cash and cash cquivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents above, investments, trade reccivables, loans
and other financial asscls where the Company has assessed the counterparty credil risk. Trade reccivables of INR 1,849.66 (et of provision of INR 660,69) as at 31 March 2024 carried al
amortised cost and is valued considering provision for allowance using expected credit loss method (if any). In addition to the historical pattern of credit toss, we have considered the likeliliood of
increased credit risk. The Company has specifically cvaluated the potential impact with respect to Healtheare service sector. The Company closely moniloss its cuslomers who arc being impacled.
Also a substantial portion of the financial assct is related Lo investments in subsidiarics (INR 8.710,06) and loans and advances Lo subsidiarics (INR 476.04) wherein Management has considered on
the projections whilc doing its assessment for impairment testine.

iv) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the Fair value of futurc cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, inlerest 1ates and equity
prices

v) Interest rate risk
The Company is exposed to inlerest rat 1isk because the Company borrows funds al both fixed and Moating inkerest pates. The Company’s significant interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings with variablc interest rates. which cxpose the Company Lo cash flow intercst rate risk. The interest rate on the Company’s fmancial instruments is based an market rates. The Company
[monitors the moveinent in intercst rales on an angoing basis. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and Noating ralc borrawings,
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to inlerest rate changes at the end of the reporting period aic as follows:

ies (Dank borrowings) [ 31 March 2025_| 31 March 2024 |

torm borrowinge including current maitirities and overdrafl | 2.983.42 | 3.374 92 |

Sensitivity analysis

Impact on profit or (luss) Impatt on equity, net of tax
Asnt As at| As at] Asat
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 !

1% increasc in MCLR rate (29.83) (33.75) (29.83) {33.73)
1% deercase in MCLR rate 29.83 33.75 29.83 3375
The analysts is prepared ossuming the amount of liabiliky ding at Lhe reporting date was ding for the whole ycar A onc per cent increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rale
risk intcrnally Lo key management personnel and represents ‘s of the r bly possible change in interest rates. The Company's sensilivity o interest rates has increased in

the current year duc Lo the additional varinble ratc long term borrowings taken during the year

vi) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial mstrument will Muctuate beeause of changes in foreign exchange rate. The majority of the Company's assels arc
located in India and Indian rupee being the functional currency for the Company. The Company's exposure Lo the risk of changes in forcign exchange rates is minimal and not signilicant

CHARTERED

AGCOUNTANTS
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40 Investments, loans, guarantees and security
(a)  The Company has made investment in the following companies / limited labikity pannerships,
Particulars As at Alotment/Purchases |Sold during the |Impairment/ Write ofl'| As at
1 April 2024 during the year year 31 March 2025
Investment in equity instruments
Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP 4775 - - 47.75
Sanghamitra Hospitals Private Limited 8,400.68 456.06 - 8.856.74
Komali Fertility Centre LLP 40.00 - - 40.00
Komali Fertility Centre LLP-Ongole 51.00 - 51.00
Adiran IB Healthcare Private Limited 160.63 - - 160.63
Ansraya HealthCare LLP 10.00 10.00
Total Investments 8,700.06 456.06 - - 9.166.12
Particulars As at la\llulmtnl.‘l’urthnns Sold during the | Impairment/ Write oﬂ'l;\s at
1 April 2023 during the vear vear 31 March 2024
Investment in equity instruments
Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP 4775 - - - 47.75
Sanghamitra Hospitals Private Limited 7,905.69 494.99 - 8,400 68
Komali Fertility Centre LLP 40.00 - - 40.00
Komali Fertility Centre LLP-Ongole 51.00 - - - 51.00
Adiran IB Healthcare Private Limited 160.63 - - 160.63
Anstaya HealthCare LLP - 10.00 - - 10.00
Total Investments 8.205.07 504.99 - - 8,710.06
(b) The Company has piven unsecured loans to the following entities;
Entity As at Movement As at % of total loans Purpose of loans
1 April 2024 31 March 2025
Subsidiary
Adiran IB Healthcare Private Limited 476.04 21420 690,24 70.80%)| Financial
assislance
Others
1r. Ramesh Health and Educational Society 22598 5870 284.68 29 20%| Financial
assistance
Total 702.02 272.90 974.92 100.00%
Entity As at Movement As at % of total loans Purpose of loans
1 April 2023 31 March 2024
Subsidiary
Adiran IB Healthcare Private Limited 25218 223 86 476.04 67 81%| Financial
assistance
Others
Dr. Ramesh Health and Educalional Society 142,04 8394 22598 32.19%| Financial
assislance
Total 394.22 307.80 702.02 100.00%
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41 The Company has

a

system of mai aof mformation and d

and d 1o be

Since the law roquires exi
led

entered into with

provision for Laxation.

42 The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Sccurily, 2020 and Code on Wages. 2019 ['Codes'] relating to employce benefits during employinent and Ppost-
2020 and the same has reccived Presidential Assent. The Codes have been published in the Gasglte of India. However, the d:

P
ial period and expeets such recards Lo be
the opinion that its international transactions arc at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any

Company will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which the Code becomes ¢fTective and the related rules arc published

43 Financial ratios

as required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
in nature, the Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the international transactions
in existence latest by the datc of filing its incomc tax return as required by the law. The Management is of
impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expensc and that of

h

ployment bencefils in Scp
ate on which the Codes will come into cffect has not yet been notificd. The

Ratio Methadulopy (Refer Notes below) For the year ended For the year ended Variance (%) Explanation if variance
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 exceeds 25%

a} Current ralio Current assets/ Current lizbilitics 0.90 0.66 36% Duc to increasc in trade
receivables and loans to
subsidiary.

b) Debt-cquily ratio Total debl/ Sharcholder's cquity 047 033 -11% Not applicable

¢) Debl scrvice coverage ratio Eamings available for debt service/ Debt 2.86 137 8% Duc to increase in net profits

scrvice afler taxcs

d) Relum on cquity Net profit afler taxes/ Averaue 9% 591% 55% Duc Lo increase in net profits

sharcholder's cquity afler laxes

¢) Inventory tumover ratio Cosl of goods sold/ Average inventory 10.18 10.26 -1% Not applicable

1) Trade reccivables (urnover ratio Revenue fron operations/ Average 11.55 13,69 -16% Not applicable

accounts reccivables

g} Trade payables turnover ralio Tolal purchases/ Avcrage (rade payables 184 1.66 11% Not applicable

h) Nel capital umover ratio Nel sales/ Working capital (45.38) (11.92) 281% Duc Lo increasc in sales

i) Net profit ratio Net profit/ Net sales 5% 3.24% 44% Due (o increase in net profits
aller (axcs

J) Retum on capital cmployed Eamings before interest and taxes/ Capital 10% GY97% 47% Duc to increase in nct profits

cmployed aller laxes
Dividend income, net gain on salc of 0% 0.05% -99% Due to reduction in gain on

k} Relurn on investment

Notes:

investments and net fair value gain over
average investnienls

Total debt = Borrowings + Lease liabilitics - Cash & cash cquivalents - Current investments
Eamings available for debl serviee = Net profil before taxcs + Non-cash operating cxpenses Iike depreciation and amortisations - Other income + Finance cost + Other adjustments (such as loss on salc of

property, plant and equipment)

Debt service = Interest + Leasc payments + Principal repayments

Net profit = Net profit after tax

Capital cmployed = Tangiblc net worth + Tolal debt

Earnings before interest and taxes = Net prolit before taxes - Other income + Finance cost + Other adjustments (such as loss on salc of property. plant and cquipment)

investnents
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44  Additional disclosures
a) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property during and as at 31 March 2025 and 31

March 2024 ('the reporling periods')

b) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, plant and equipment, Tntangible assets and Right-to use-assets during the reporting periods

¢) There are no transactions and balances with companics which have been removed fiom the Reuister of Companies [struck off companies] during and as at the reporting periods

d) The Company has not traded / mvested in Crypto cuniency duiing the repoi ting periods

) The Company does not have any chaiges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period as at the reporting periods

f) The Company has not advanced or loaned o1 invested funds during the reporting periods Lo any other person(s) or entity(ies), including forzign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the

Intermediary shall
(i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantee, securily or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaties

1) The Compay has not reccived any fund during the reporting periods fiom any person(s) or entity(ies), including forcigu entities (Funding Parly) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing o1

otherwise) that the Company shall
() directly or indirectly fend or invest in other persons or entities identiried in any manner whatsoevet by or on behalf of tie Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalt of the Ultimale Beaeficiurics

h) The Company has no such transaction which 1s not recorded 1 the books of accounts that has been sutrendeied or disclosed as mcome dutig the repoiting petiods in the tax assessments under the
Tncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any othet relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

i) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties except note (j) below (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either
sevetally or jointly with any olher person that are:
(i) repayable on demand; or
(1) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

1) The Company has granted loan to Adiran 1B Healthcare Pvt Ltd (refer Note 37) for business purpose which is repayable on demand at rate of interest ranging between 8.5% (31
Mach 2024: 8 5% )

k) The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any hank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consorlium [hereof or other lender in accordance with the guidelines
on willful defaalters issued by Uic Reserve Bank of India

1) The Company has complicd with the number of layers for its holding in downslieam companies presciibed under claase (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

m) As per the requirement of the tule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company uses only such accounting softwares for maintainuag its books of account that have a feature of 1ecording
audit trail of cach and every tansaction creating an edit log ef each change made 1 the boaks of accourit Tnis feature ofrecording the audit trail has operated throughout the year and was not tampeied

with during the year

The Company has established and maintained un adequate internal contol fiamework over its financial repoiling and based cn its assessmeut, has concluded that the intemal contiols for the year ended
31 March 2025 were effective

Additionally audit trail has been preseived by the Company as per (he stalutory 1equirements for record retention

Sor and on behalf of the Bourd oy Directors of
Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
CIN: U73100AP1995PTC020491

CHARTERED
AGCOUNTANTS / Oy
Dr. P. Ramesh Baba MLS. Rauna Mohan Rao
Muanaging Director Chairman and Director
DIN. 018794306 DIN 02356742
Vijayawa Viyayawada
Date . 15 Muy 2025 Dute : 15 May 2023
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Suzgula Hari Krishoa Pavitra Pramod Hunswadkar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretiary
Vijayawada Membership No.: A73646
Dale : 15 May 2025 Vijuyawada

Date : 15 May 2025



